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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 
AUGUST 26, 2019 

PERMITS IN NATIONAL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRICTS 
NRD-2019-0042 

609 DAVIS STREET 
RAINEY STREET NATIONAL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRICT 

PROPOSAL 
Construct a 2-story structure with mezzanine level adjacent to a ca. 1918-20 house.  
ARCHITECTURE 
One-story Craftsman house with wood horizontal and shingle siding, 1:1 wood windows, a 
gabled roof with composition shingles, exposed rafter tails and decorative brackets, a picture 
window, and a large deck addition.  
PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 
1) Relocate the existing building’s entrance to the Rainey Street elevation, and replace an 
existing door with windows on the same elevation. 
2) Remove and replace the existing fence, ramp, and deck with a steel fence, CMU wall, and 
reconfigured deck and yard space. 
3) Construct a two-story structure with mezzanine to the rear of the property, independent 
from the historic building. The first floor deck will be enclosed by a steel fence with metal 
railings above a solid wood-clad base. An elevator shaft, clad in stucco, will be added. The 
mezzanine level contains a balcony with steel guardrails. The second-floor façade will begin 
above the ridgeline of the historic house, approximately 10’ back from the front wall. It sits 
atop steel piers and features a street-facing balcony, gabled enclosed structures with rooflines 
and exposed rafter tails to match the existing building, and a latticed steel pergola. The 
enclosed gabled structures are each clad in horizontal siding with wood trim, and feature 
metal roofs and fixed-pane windows beneath each gable.  
RESEARCH 
The existing house appears to have been built between 1918 and 1920 by A.G. Malmberg, a 
shoemaker, and his wife Ida. They lived there for at least a year with his daughter and son-
in-law. From 1924 to at least 1941, the house was occupied by owners Rufus and Elizabeth 
Waterston. Rufus Waterston was the son James Waterston, a carpenter, stonecutter, and 
bricklayer. He followed in his father’s footsteps as a contractor. Waterston died in 1938 and 
his wife and their son remained in the house for the next few years. After a series of short-
term owners, the house was purchased in 1952 by Elin M. and Sixten August Walberg 
Johnson, a World War II veteran and maintenance man at the County Courthouse. The 
Johnsons lived at 609 Davis Street until Sixten’s death in 1977, with Elin remaining there 
until at least 1986. 
STAFF COMMENTS 
The property is not included in the 1984 Comprehensive Cultural Resources Survey. The 
property is listed as non-contributing to the district in the 1985 NRHD nomination.  
STANDARDS FOR REVIEW 
Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 
Staff has evaluated this house for designation as a historic landmark and has determined 
that there is not sufficient significance to warrant individual designation as a historic 
landmark under the criteria set forth in City Code: 
1) The building is more than 50 years old. 
2) The building appears to retain a moderate degree of integrity. 
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a. Architecture. The building displays characteristics of the Craftsman style. 
b. Historical association. There do not appear to be any significant historical 

associations. 
c. Archaeology. The building was not evaluated for its potential to yield significant data 

concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 
d. Community value. The building does not possess a unique location, physical 

characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the character, image, or 
cultural identity of the city, the neighborhood, or a particular demographic group.  

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed landscape 
with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 

The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation are used to evaluate projects in 
National Register historic districts. Applicable standards include: 
2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of 
distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that 
characterize a property will be avoided. The proposed new construction will alter the 
relationship of the existing structure to the streetscape; however, the applicant has made 
changes to the design to decrease the visual weight of the new building. No distinctive 
materials will be removed, as the new structure is not directly attached to the existing house.  
5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved. The proposed new construction 
will not significantly alter existing materials, features, finishes, or construction techniques.  
9. New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work 
will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, 
size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its 
environment. The proposed work is differentiated via the use of steel as a focal material and 
via its modern proportions, fenestration patterns, and design rhythm. The new structure’s 
materials, as well as the orientation, massing, and roof pitches, have been amended to 
increase compatibility with the adjacent historic structure. 
10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a 
manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property 
and its environment would be unimpaired. If the new structure were removed, the historic 
building would remain intact. 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Revise rooflines on proposed new construction to reflect the roofline on the original house, or 
consider the flat-roofed design. Consider gable orientations and moving the balcony to the 
Rainey Street elevation.  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Comment on and release the permit, as the applicant has amended the original design per 
COA Committee recommendations. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Photos 

 

 

 
Clivebar.com, 2019 

Occupancy History 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office, August 2019 
1920 A.G. and Ida C. Malmberg, owners 

Proprietor, Malmberg Shoe Works, 614 Colorado 
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Axel and Esther Paulson, owners 
Malmberg Auto Repair Company, 205 E. 5th St. 
Mrs. Judith Johnson, renter 

1922 90 Rainey: C. H. and Mary Hurley, owners 
Lillian M. Hurley 

1924 Rufe M. and Elizabeth Waterston, owners 
Carpenter 

1927 R.M. and Elizabeth Waterston, owners 
Contractor 

1929 Rufe M. and Elizabeth Waterston, owners 
Contractor 

1932-33 Rufe M. and Elizabeth Waterston, owners 
Stonecutter 

1935 R.M. and Elizabeth Waterston, owners 
Carpenter 

1937 R.M. and Elizabeth Waterston, owners 
Carpenter 

1939 Mrs. Elizabeth Waterston (Wid. Rufus M. Waterston), owner 
1941 Mrs. Elizabeth Waterston, owner 

Clerk 
James R. Waterston 
Student, U of T 

1944-45 Velan and Lela Hurst, owners 
Mechanic  
Bertha Phillips (Wid. Charles), renter 
Saleswoman 
Jennie L. Phillips, renter 
Mechanic  

1947 John H. and Ethel Brooks, owners 
Farmer 
Benjamin Jr. and Ellen Garter, renters 
Farmer  

1949 John H. and Ethel Brooks, owners 
1952 Sixten A.W. and Ellen Johnson, owners 

Roofer  
1955 Sixten A.W. and Elin M. Johnson, owners 

Janitor, Building Office of the County Courthouse 
1959 Sixten A. and Elin M. Johnson, owners 
1962 Sixten A. and Elin M. Johnson, owners 

Janitor, County Courthouse 
1965 Sixten A. and Elin M. Johnson, owners 

Janitor, County Courthouse 
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1968 Sixten A. and Elin M. Johnson, owners 

Janitor, County Courthouse 
1973 Sixten A. and Elin M. Johnson, owners 

Retired 
1977 Sixten A. and Elin M. Johnson, owners 

Retired 
1981 Mrs. Elin M. Johnson, owner 

Retired 
1986 Mrs. Elin M. Johnson, owner 

Retired 
1992 Alan N. Sinton, renter 

Note: The directory indicates that Alan Sinton is a new resident 

Biographical Notes 

                    
The Austin Statesman; Jun 15, 1926       The Austin Statesman; Jan 27, 1938  
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The Austin Statesman; Oct 25, 1937        The Austin Statesman; Jan 28, 1938 

 
The Austin American Statesman; Jul 4, 1976 
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The Austin American; Mar 31, 1963  The Austin American Statesman; Sep 13, 1977 

 
Sixten A.W. Johnson death certificate, 1977 

Building Permits 

 
Sewer tap permit, 5-24-18 
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